Town of Kittery
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904

Board of Appeals
Meeting Agenda, Council Chambers
Tuesday, December 10, 2019
Regular Meeting — 6:30 P.M.

1. Call to Order; Introductory; Roll Call
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Agenda Amendment and Adoption

4. Executive session (if required)

5. Public Hearings

a. Melissa Williamson, on behalf of 74 State Road LLC, requesting a Special Exception
Use to convert an existing commercial building into a mixed use building at 74 State
Road in the Business — Local (B-L) per Section 16.3.2.8.C(9) and 16.6.4.D of the

Town Code.

b. Chris Velardi, on behalf of Josephine Robbins, owner, 3 Old Cutts Road requesting a
Miscellaneous Variation Request to expand a non-conforming structure in the
Residential — Rural (R-RL) zone per Section 16.6.4.C(1).

6. Unfinished Business

7. New Business

a. FElection of Board Officers

o Chair
o Vice Chair
o Secretary

o

Acceptance of Previous Minutes

a. October 22, 2019
b. November 26, 2019

9. Board Member or CEQO Issues or Comment
a. 2020 Board of Appeals Schedule

10. Adjournment



TOWN OF KITTERY DATE SUBMITTED
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICE MAP & LOT -4 A
200 ROGERS ROAD, KITTERY, MAINE 03904 pos 9 3
PHONE: (207) 475-1305
FAX: (207) 439-6806 DATE PAID
Application to the DATE COMPLETE
BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING DATE
| SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE REQUEST =]

I have reviewed Town Code Title 16, Board of Appeals By-Laws, and the Ordinance(s) pertinent to this application. My request is

based on the following:
TITLE 16 CHAPTER [é_‘; secrion | |§. % o & C 6 PAGE [ l—f
TITLE CHAPTER SECTION PAGE

Special exception means a use that would not be appropriate generally or without restriction throughout the zoning district, but
which, if controlled as to number, area, location, or relation to the neighborhood, would promote the public health, safety, welfare,
morals, order, comfort, convenience, appearance, prosperity, or general welfare. Such uses may be permitted in such zoning
districts as special excepticns, if specific provision for such special exceptions is made in Chapter 16.3.

IN ORDER FOR AN APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED COMPLETE AND SCHEDULED FOR A PUBLIC HEARING:
APPLICATIONS FORMS MUST BE COMPLETE; 10 SETS OF DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED; & ALL FEE(S) PAID

PROPERTY ]NFORMAEON
ADDRESS 7ﬂ b"?&A Rﬂ h’-"H-erf ,_ML‘ 03404 - pi59
MAP & LOT# q1 A £ TS 3.51‘; i ACI’C S

BASE ZONE(S): &S‘mcbi ..L, Vi L 6 G- L)

oveRLaY 20Ne: Shore Jgal - Sleeqm Pro fedio

The subject property:
[@f is not ] in & Shoreland overlay or Resource Protection zone; [1is/ in a floodplain; AND
have outstanding code violations; and, if so, granting this appeal provides resolution .

[ does

PROPERTY OWNER: [ have right, titic or interest in the affected property, or Issue, as shown by:

e 2. 74 Shde Tod LLC /o Melissa Wiltamsen
wanowmess [0S Thomden Sheet

ary sctsrvadbl o [l ATES O3
movero. (63 -43E - | oty () 02126 dnas, Com

NOTE: You may have an atiorney represent you, but such representation is not necessary. You may aiso be represented by a designated agent (e.g. family

memker, neighbor, engineer, contracior) as you so desire.

APPLICANT (if d@&rem‘) I am an agent of the applicant with standing, as shown by:

NAME(S)

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY

I

—[ STATE

ZIP CODE

PHONE No.

e-MAIL:

To the best of nty kmowledge, all information submitted on and with this applicati

By:

pae: 1111912014

[/(W&@ﬁ

:Efﬁ;iﬁ V.B\I\M\f\

(Print Name)

Page 1 of 3




r AFFIRMATIONS (Please read and check all the boxes to confirm) I
I understand that the:
A Use requested must:

& 1. Not have an unreasonably adverse effect on the health, safety or general welfare of the residents of the area or the general
public.
& 2. Not significantly devaluate abutting property or property across a public or private way.
% 3. Not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of permitted or legally established uses in the zone wherein the proposed use
is to be located, or of permitted or legally established uses in adjacent use zones.
4. Not have an adverse impact on spawning grounds, fish, aquatic life, or bird or other wildlife habitats,
M 5. Be in harmony with and promote the general purposes and intent of this Code.
® 6. Adequately provide for the disposal of all wastewater.
i 7. Conserve shore cover and visual, as well as actual, points of access to inland waters.
® 8. Protect archaeological and historic resources as designated in the Comprehensive Plan.
&' 9. Avoid problems associated with floodplain development and use.
ﬁ Board may establish additional conditions, including, but not limited to, the following:
B 1. Front, side or rear yards in excess of minimum requirements;
IR 2. Modifications of the exterior features of buildings or other structures:

B 3. Limitations on the size of buildings and other structures more stringent than the minimum or maximum requirements;

) 4. Regulation of design of access drives, sidewalks and other traffic {eaturcs;
@ 5. Off-street parking and loading spaces in excess of the minimum requirements; or
@ 6. Restrictions on hours of operation.

X Proposed use may:

#® 1. Not have an adverse effect. In making this determination, the Board shall take into consideration the potential effect of the
development on the environment from air, water or soil pollution; noise; traffic congestion; soil erosion; the burden on sewage
disposal or water supply systems or other municipal facilities, services or public ways; and any other relevant factors.

@ 2. Not significantly devalue abutting properties. In making its determination, the Board shall take into consideration the type of
structure proposed; the topography of the area; the market valuc of the surrounding real estate; the availability of utilities and
transportation; the availability of schools and hospitals; traffic conditions; and any other relevant factors.

% 3. Not give rise to any grave concern regarding the expectations as listed above.
Y 4. Be subject to such additional conditions as the Board decms necessary.

I also understand that the Board of Appeals:
¥ May hear and decide a special exception use request within the limitations set forth in on page 1 of this application.

[A Appears to have Jurisdiction to hear this request; hearing must be held within 30 days of this request filing; application must
be complete; and, public and abutter notice must be made no less than seven days prior to the scheduled hearing,
Will conduct this hearing De Novo (meaning the Board acts if it were considering the question for the first time, affording no
deference to the preceding agency decisions; may receive new evidence and testimony consistent with this Town Code Title 16
and the Board rules; and, conduct additional hearings and receive additional evidence and testimony).
ﬂ Will determine my Burden of Proof:

1) What does the ordinance/statute require the applicant to prove?

2) Does the ordinance/statute prohibit or limit the type of use being proposed?

3) What factors must be considered under ordinance/statutes to decide whether to grant the request?

4) Is the evidence presented substantial? Is it credible? Is it outweighed by conflicting evidence?
X! Requires substantial evidence as the Standard of Review for this request, meaning:

"More than a mere scintilla”. It means such refevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as adequate 10 support a conclusion.

The preponderance of evidence standard is met if the proposition is more likely to be true than not true. The standard is salisfied if there
is greater than fifty percent chance that the proposition is true.

I;E May hear, decide, and approve variations in accordance with the criteria listed in Town Code Title 16, Sections 6.6, Basis for
Decision; and may consider other Title 16 standards.

Page2 of3



[® Approval may not be granted for an application involving a structure if the structure would be located in an unapproved
subdivision or would violate any other local ordinance or regulation or any state law which the municipality is responsible for
enforcing,

" s only legally authorized to deal with issues arising from the list above, and do not include such matters as constitutionality,
civil rights, crimmal acts, property disputes, surliness, etc.

[XI' Will not even hear my appeal umless I can show that T have “standing” to have my complaint heard;

(8 Purpose of establishing my case for “standing™ is to limit appeals on an issue to those who are directly involved and/or
affected,

4 Will try to decide my case based only on the factual information presented and what is written in the pertinent Town
ordinance/regulation, State statute(s)/regulation(s) and the rulings of the rulings of the State Supreme Judicial Court.

[® Tries to make decisions it believes would be upheld if appealed to Superior Court.

STATEMENTS:
Describe the general nature of the request:

/rJ’Jc nflt‘fd, nq")lvfc oF s (ey l/l’:"l— s 110 hee o 2 6'V+
of +1e Y Ex Raatfnq 15 fpmrz'rc:ti, U;'" «, Qs 15 on Fe 3rau"(/
Jeion ’ “The Scmnc’ g.»é- Thie J \p{ayr €xiS ’l:m Canherml (s7 ﬂé
woueld la  converted o Besidetlal ks

é’f 4 ?’a;"] a‘F

0 oot 18 o fhur), Aerdin du. T 1B, cleplr 3.
%rt“tbtm g, 5:. L., b a, A’W "‘eﬁ+ vai {cj-'wa N g Spfrf"'
bxeptlor U, The il b no etkiia Veodficatiens 4., H,
@oig,vlfng bu:!J,‘”, ;,-J eg‘,g.-l?;v} pgrl-"y’q f{ae:;. u.:"’ MeJ 710 1%

llewd (56 gmtv),

Additional Information

1. Please complete this application in its entirety. You may add other information as may be needed to adequately describe the
purpose of seeking relief from the Board of Appeals.

2. A detailed plot plan or diagram must be provided showing dimensions and shape of the lot, the size and locations of existing

buildings, the locations and dimensions of proposed buildings or alterations, and any natural or topographic features (wetlands,
streams, etc) of the lot in question. This plot plan should also inchide the distances to the nearest structures on abutting properties and

show the detail of any rights-of-way, easements, or other encumbrances.
3. Blueprints, surveys, photos and other documents may be helpful in explaining your request and should be included.

Page 3 of 3



74 STATE ROAD, KITTERY, ME

DECEMBER 2019, BOARD OF APPEALS

CURRENT BUILDING INFORMATION
« ZONE B-L

« 15 COMMERCIAL UNITS

« 14,273 SF

PROJECT DESIGN INTENT
THERE WILL BE NO EXTERIOR MODIFICATIONS TO THE EXISTING BUILDING.

« THE 5 GROUND LEVEL UNITS WILL REMAIN 5 COMMERCIAL UNITS

. THE SECOND AND THIRD FLOOR UNITS WILL CHANGE FROM 5 COMMERCIAL
UNITS PER FLOOR TO 5 RESIDENTIAL UNITS PER FLOOR, FOR A TOTAL OF 10

RESIDENTIAL UNITS.

Sheet List

Sheet Number |

Sheet Name

T1

Project Intent and Sheet List

S-1

Site Plan

A-2

Existing Floor Plans - Original Drawings

AD101

Second Floor Removal Plan - Typical Unit

AD102

Third Floor Removal Plan - Typical Unit

A101

Second Floor Plan - Typical Unit

A102

Third Floor Plan - Typical Unit

74 State Road, Kittery, ME

Kittery Condos McHENRY
74 State Road ARCHITECTURE

Project number 19062

Date DECEMBER 2019 T1
Project Intent and Sheet List Drawn by RD

Checked by JJ| Scale

4 ATAMmImm A Al A A



¥ MBL:8-41A

PID. 768

Property Address. 74 STATE ROAD

Cwner: PERUS
Co-Owner.

Cwner Address: PG BOX 159 $GTTERY, 03904-0159,ME

Book/Page: 6384/294
Sale Price: 0
Acres:3,561

iand Value; 952800
Total Valie: 198%
Style: 19

Living Area: 14273
Year Built: 1989
Zone: B-L

Class:

FLOOD ZONE

WETLAND
74 STATE ROAD

SHORELAND - STREAM PROTECTION

OVERLAY
Kittery Condos McHENRY
74 State Road ARCHITECTURE
Project number 19062
Date DECEMBER 2019 S-1
Site Plan Drawn by RD
Checked by JJ | Scale

11/13/2019 3:22:59 PM




913

W NPy _UNIT

Sk - T
=4 | ol

=) ﬂ:?h:l‘-;’:‘l; Z sbalban bl ) R T | e ; Existing Floor Plans||
g s wA B e T - : ; Original Drawings
1986




T

DN up
REMOVE DOOR

REMOVE WALL

EXISTING TOILET
AND SINK TO REMAIN

REMOVE WALL

REMOVE DOOR

COMMON DECK

Kittery Condos
74 State Road

McHENRY
ARCHITECTURE

Project number 19062

Second Floor Removal Plan - Typical
umt PLAN DRAWN BASED ON 04 UNITS

Date DECEMBER 2019

AD101

Drawn by RD

Checked by JJ

Scale 3/16"=1'-0"

11/13/2019 3:22:58 PM




::.._;g_'"'""--

&
[=

REMOVE DOOR J

o = b
I R M
COMMON DECK
Kittery Condos McHENRY
74 State Road ARCHITECTURE
Project number 19062
Date pecemBer2019]  A[D102
Third Floor Removal Plan - Typical Unit Drawn by RD
FLOOR PLAN DRAWN BASED ON 04 UNITS Checked by JJ| Scale 3/16" = 1'-0"

11/13/2019 3:22:59 PM




SECOND FLOOR UNIT m
- 797 Sq Ft EXISTING DOOR
- 657 Habitable Sq Ft TO BE INFILLED —
- One Bedroom (Front)
- 1 Bath
- Stacked Washer Dryer
WD
o A — q
Lo : 2N\ By
o - I L T
i\ | 7""4 BATHROOM
| i | 65SF |\
i I L‘| I
L | |
MASTER BEDROOM i
136 SF DN UP N
= COMMON HALL BEORE
CLOSET
e
ST M= g
= . DINING |
49 SF ,
T - 1 '
= ‘.:‘| b b .
| | 2
e | (a)
L 1 S ] L e
| | 1 | o
iT——-—— i ’ [-]
r LIVING ROOM Hi _
l # 231 SF 1 KITCHEN | s !
‘ l 240SF [l i
| I |
%
| | l L
B N E:
DECK
Kittery Condos McHENRY
74 State Road ARCHITECTURE
Project number 19062
Date DECEMBER 2019 A101
Second Floor Plan - Typical Unit Drawn by RD
FLOOR PLAN DRAWN BASED ON 04 UNITS Checked by JJ| Scale 3/16"=1-0"

11/13/2019 3:22:57 PM




THIRD FLOOR UNIT
- 929 Sq Ft i
- 656 Habitable Sq Ft ;1 |
- One Bedroom N 5
-11/2 BATH
- Stacked Washer Dryer STUDY
58 SF
HALF WALL, il
HEIGHT TBD ——=t )
KITCHEN / DINING BATHROOM @
254 SF 85 SF
— ——
% | 8 | R . W/D
=L I I
: |
] [‘ I
i iy S |
AN
f 1/2 BATH| |cLoS LOSE
r 19 SF
Ll
] :
Wi "’ e — '- s :;,";;;“ r En.j | ::
| H
ik PR
i
r LIVINGROOM |k MASTER BEDROOM -
| 152 SF ‘ 192 SF | |
e ’ AN \ |
1 i "::;\/ ¥ \|
l R i 1ii 1
| | N \
- N : ZaN . g
‘4.\\_ s ’ )
e —
DECK
Kittery Condos McHENRY
74 State Road ARCHITECTURE
Project number 19062
Date DECEMBER 2019 A102
Third Floor Plan - Typical Unit Drawn by RD
FLOOR PLAN DRAWN BASED ON 04 UNITS Checked by JJ| Scale 3/16" = 1'-0"

11/13/2019 3:22:58 PM




PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

BOA Meeting Date: December 10, 2019

Item #: SE2019-05

STAFF REPORT - 74 STATE ROAD - SPECIAL EXCEPTION USE REQUEST

Project Name: 74 State Road

Owner/Applicant: Melissa Williamson

Proposed Development: Conversion of a commercial building to a mixed-use building
Request: Special Exception Use to convert an existing commercial building

into a mixed-use building in the Business — Local (B-L) per Section
16.3.2.8.C(9) and 16.6.4.D of the Town Code.

Site Addresses: 74 State Road

Map & Lot Numbers: 8-41A

Current Zoning:
Business — Local (B-L) - The purpose of the Business — Local zone is to provide local sales, services

and business space within the Town.



The existing salon use is permitted by right in the zone. The following uses are permitted as a
Special Exception Use in the B-L Zone: (9) residential dwelling unit as part of a mixed-use

building.

Staff Recommendation: APPROVAL of Special Exception Use request.

District Standards:
Business — Local (B-L) Zoning District Standards
Land Area per DU 4,000 sf |Front Yard Setback (min.) 15 feet
Building Coverage (max.) None Rear Yard Setback (min.) 10 feet
Lot Size None Side Yard Setback (min.) 10 feet

Current Use: One dwelling unit.

Surrounding Land Uses:

West: Business - Local (B-L) and Shoreland Overlay (OZ-SL), Retail unit
East: Business — Local, Elder care facility

North: Business — Local (B-L), vacant land

South: Business — Local 1 (B-L1), Retail/commercial unit

Future Land Use:

The subject property is located within a Growth Area in the Future Land Use Map, defined in the
Comprehensive Plan as “areas where the Town would like to encourage future development to
occur.” Growth Area include parts of Town where 75% or more of future non-residential growth is
expected, areas that are or can relatively easily be served by public facilities and services, are
accessible by a variety of modes of transportation, promote more compact and denser pattern of
development, and where there is existing development.

Site Description:

The subject property consists of approximately 155,117 square feet (3.5 acres) located along the
South-Eastern right-of-way of State Road. The property is zoned Business — Local (B-L). The lot
contains one commercial building of 14,273 square feet currently housing 15 commercial units.
The parking lot is located to the front of the building and contains 50 parking spaces. The building
is situated in such away that from the front, the first of its 3 stories is partially below grade, with
the rear of the building having all 3 stores above grade.

History of the Property:
The commercial building was built in 1989 and consists of 14,273 square feet currently housing
15 commercial units.

Description of the Issue:
The owner/applicant wishes to convert all but 5 of the 15 units to residential dwelling units per the
attached plans. The 5 first floor units would remain commercial. No exterior modifications to the




building are proposed. This structure is located in the Business — Local zone.

Applicant’s Special Exception Use Reguest:

Section 16.6.6 requires the Board of Appeals to use the following process when hearing requests:

§ 16.6.6 Basis for decision.

A. Conditions.

(1)

In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must first
establish that it has a basis in law to conduct the hearing and decide the question.

LUDC Section 16.6.4.D.(1) allows the Board of Appeals to “hear, decide and may
grant an applicant's special exception use request where authorized in Chapter 16.3
for any application excluded from Planning Board review as stated in § 16.10.3.2, if
the proposed use meets the criteria set forth in § 16.6.6, Basis for decision.” Since this
property is not in the Shoreland Overlay or Resource Protection Overlay Zones, the
special exception use request falls to the Board of Appeals.

)

In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must use the

(@)

(7

(c)

(d)

Jfollowing criteria as the basis of a decision, that:

The proposed use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of
adjacent properties or of properties in adjacent use zones,

The use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of adjacent
properties.

The use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of permitted or
legally established uses in the zone wherein the proposed use is to be

located or of permitted or legally established uses in adjacent use zones,;

The use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of legally
established uses in the zone since the use is similar adjoining properties.

The safety, the health and the welfare of the Town will not be adversely
affected by the proposed use or its location; and

The use will not adversely affect the health and welfare of the Town.

The use will be in harmony with and promote the general purposes and
intent of this title.

The use is in harmony with Title 16 and promotes its general purposes.

Factors for consideration. In making such determination, the Board of Appeals must also give
consideration, among other things, to:



(1)

2)

(3)

(4)

(3)

(6)

(7)

(8)

The character of the existing and probable development of uses in the zone and the
peculiar suitability of such zone for the location of any of such uses,

The use involved is legally permitted in the zone, per review by Board of
Appeals.

The conservation of property values and the encouragement of the most appropriate
uses of land;

The proposed dwelling units will be created within the existing structure, which
is an appropriate and compatible use of the land.

The effect that the location of the proposed use may have upon the congestion or
undue increase of vehicular traffic congestion on public streets or highways;

The space was previously used for business uses, which would have had a
higher traffic rate than for a dwelling unit.

The availability of adequate and proper public or private facilities for the treatment,
removal or discharge of sewage, refuse or other effluent (whether liquid, solid,
gaseous or otherwise) that may be caused or created by or as a result of the use;

The property is connected to adequate sewer systems.

Whether the use, or materials incidental thereto, or produced thereby, may give off
obnoxious gases, odors, smoke or soot;

The proposed use should not produce any obnoxious gases, odors, smoke or
soot.

Whether the use will cause disturbing emission of electrical discharges, dust, light,
vibration or noise;

The use causes no disturbing emission of electrical discharges, dust, light,
vibration or noise.

Whether the operations in pursuance of the use will cause undue interference with
the orderly enjoyment by the public of parking or of recreational facilities, if
existing, or if proposed by the Town or by other competent governmental agency,
No undue interference should result from this use.

The necessity for paved off-street parking;

Per §16.8.9.4.D each of the 5 professional units are required to have 6 parking
spaces and each of the 10 dwelling units are required to have 2. The property



9

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

would be required to have 50 parking spaces and currently contains a parking
lot with 50 parking spaces.

Whether a hazard to life, limb or property because of fire, flood, erosion or panic
may be created by reason or as a result of the use, or by the structures to be used,
or by the inaccessibility of the property or structures thereon for the convenient
entry and operation of fire and other emergency apparatus, or by the undue
concentration or assemblage of persons upon such plot;

No hazard to life, limb or property should be created by the use.

Whether the use, or the structures to be used, will cause an overcrowding of land or
undue concentration of population or unsightly storage of equipment, vehicles or
other materials;

No overcrowding should result from this use.

Whether the plot area is sufficient, appropriate and adequate for the use and the
reasonably anticipated operation and expansion thereof;

The existing lot is a conforming lot of record.

Whether the proposed use will be adequately screened and buffered from contiguous
properties;

Adequate existing vegetation exists.

The assurance of adequate landscaping, grading and provision for natural
drainage;

No changes are proposed to the land.
Whether the proposed use will provide for adequate pedestrian circulation;
There are existing sidewalks along State Road.

Whether the proposed use anticipates and eliminates potential nuisances created by
its location; and

The proposed uses should not cause any nuisances.

The satisfactory compliance with all applicable performance standard criteria
contained in Chapters 16.8 and 16.9.

Other than the request applied by the applicant here, the property conforms to
Title 16.8 and 16.9 in its existing state. The applicant must abide by any



conditions placed on the use by the Board of Appeals.

Using the standards and criteria found in the LUDC, Staff recommends APPROVAL of the
Special Exception Use request to convert an existing commercial building into mixed used
occupancy with the following conditions:

1. A Business Use Change application must be submitted and approved by the Code
Enforcement Officer prior to construction starting.

2. A State Construction Permit must be obtained from the Office of the State Fire
Marshal prior to construction starting



TOWN OF KITTERY DATE SUBMITTED

CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICE MAP & LOT
200 ROGERS ROAD, KITTERY, MAINE 03904 ASA FEE
PHONE: (207) 475-1305
FAX: (207) 439-6806 DATE PAID
Application to the DATE COMPLETE

BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING DATE

| MISCELLANEOUS VARIATION REQUST |

| have reviewed Town Code Title 16, Board of Appeals By-Laws, and the Ordinance(s) pertinent to this application. My request is
based on Title 6.4.3, Miscellaneous Variation Request and:

& Nonconformity (Article III of Chapter 16.7):

Nonconforming Residential Use in Commercial Zones Expansion (Section 7.3.5.3);
Nonconforming Lots of Record (Section 7.3.5.9);

Sign Violation and Appeal Standards (Section 8.10.3);

Parking, Loading and Traffic Standards (Article IX of Chapter 16.8);

Temporary, Intra-Family Dwelling Unit (Article XXI of Chapter 16.8); or
Accessory Dwelling Units Standards (Article XXV of Chapter 16.8).

OO ooOooo

IN ORDER FOR AN APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED COMPLETE AND SCHEDULED FOR A PUBLIC HEARING:
APPLICATIONS FORMS MUST BE COMPLETE; 10 SETS OF DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED; & ALL FEE(S) PAID

PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS 3 Old Cutts Rd
MAP 60 LOT # 17 LOT SIZE 2 acres

BASE ZONE(S): R-RL OVERLAY ZONE(S)

The subject property:
[is /] in a Shoreland overlay or Resource Protection zone; [ is /] in a floodplain; AND
[ does /[does not]] have outstanding code violations: and. if so, granting this appeal provides resolution .

PROPERTY OWNER: I have right, title or interest in the affected property, or issue, as shown by:

NAME(S) Josephine Robbins

MAILING ADDRESS 24 Old Dennett Rd South

CITY Kittery STATE ME ZIP CODE 03204
PHONENo. 207-439-2618 eMalL:  Jorobbins47@gmail.com

NOTE: You may have an attorney represent you, but such representation is not necessary. You may also be represented by a designated agent (e.g. family
member, neighbor, engineer, contractor) as you so desire.

APPLICANT (if different) 1am an agent of the applicant with standing, as shown by:

HAMEG) Chris Velardi

MAILING ADDRESS 1 Vicki Ln

cIry South Berwick| sTate | ME ZIP CODE 03908
PHONE No. 503-667-1424 eMAIL: cvelardi23@gmail.com

To the best of my knowledge, all information submitted on and with this application is true and correc

1.
Date: 11/18/19 By: (‘,ﬂ,w. \/uLuuL—

(Signature)

Chris Velardi

(Print Name)

Page1l of 3




AFFIRMATIONS (Please read and check all the boxes to confirm) J

Identify relevant Town code sections:

TITLE 16 CHAPTER | 16.3 SECTION | 2.1 PAGE
TITLE CHAPTER SECTION PAGE
TITLE CHAPTER SECTION PAGE

I understand that the Board of Appeals:

¥~ May hear and decide on a miscellaneous variation request within the limitations set forth in the Title 16 Section identified in
Item A-H on Page 1.

¥~ Appears to have jurisdiction to hear this request; hearing must be held within 30 days of this request filing; application must
be complete; and. public and abutter notice must be made no less than seven days prior to the scheduled hearing.

{2~ Will conduct this hearing De Novo (meaning the Board acts if it were considering the question for the first time, affording no

deference to the preceding agency decisions; may receive new evidence and testimony consistent with this Town Code Title 16
and the Board rules; and, conduct additional hearings and receive additional evidence and testimony).

4~ will determine my Burden of Proof:
1) What does the ordinance/statute require the applicant to prove?
2) Does the ordinance/statute prohibit or limit the type of use being proposed?
3) What factors must be considered under ordinance/statutes to decide whether to grant the request?
4) Ts the evidence presented substantial? Is it credible? Is it outweighed by conflicting evidence?
U~ Requires substantial evidence as the Standard of Review for this request, meaning:
"More than a mere scintilla”. 1t means such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a

conclusion. The preponderance of evidence standard is met if the proposition is more likely to be true than not true. The
standard is satisfied if there is greater than fifty percent chance that the proposition is true.

148 May hear, decide, and approve variations in accordance with the criteria listed in Town Code Title 16, Sections 6.6.1, Factors,
and 6.6.2, Considerations; and may consider other Title 16 standards.

M~ Approval may not be granted for an application involving a structure if the structure would be located in an unapproved
subdivision or would violate any other local ordinance or regulation or any state law which the municipality is responsible for
enforcing.

{4~ 1s only legally authorized to deal with issues arising from the list above, and do not include such matters as constitutionality,
civil rights, criminal acts, property disputes, surliness, etc.

#~ Will not even hear my appeal unless I can show that I have “standing” to have my complaint heard;

¥ Purpose of establishing my case for “standing” is to limit appeals on an issue to those who are directly involved and/or
affected.

¥ Will try to decide my case based only on the factual information presented and what is written in the pertinent Town
ordinance/regulation, State statute(s)/regulation(s) and the rulings of the rulings of the State Supreme Judicial Court.

4™ Tries to make decisions it believes would be upheld if appealed to Superior Court.

Additional Information

1. Please complete this application in its entirety. You may add other information as may be needed to adequately describe the
purpose of seeking relief from the Board of Appeals.

2. A detailed plot plan or diagram must be provided showing dimensions and shape of the lot, the size and locations of existing
buildings, the locations and dimensions of proposed buildings or alterations, and any natural or topographic features (wetlands,
streams, etc) of the lot in question. This plot plan should also include the distances to the nearest structures on abutting properties and
show the detail of any rights-of-way, easements, or other encumbrances.

3. Blueprints, surveys, photos and other documents may be helpful in explaining your request and should be included.

Page 2 of 3




STATEMENT:
Describe the general nature of the request:

We would like to remove the existing exterior deck and build in its place a one story kitchen addition.

The addition will not exceed the extents of the current western facade setback(frontage) nor the

southern facade extents, and will blend with and compliment the existing structure aesthetic.
We would also like to add a stair to the Eastern facade off the Northeast bedroom. This stair will be

held well within the existing setback.

Page 3 of 3



Index:

SO1
AO1
AQZ
AOS
AO4

Site plan
Floorplans
Flevations 01
Flevations 02
Photos

603.205.9882
603.667.1424

draftsman: Chris Velardi

owner: Jessica Palos
builder: Paul Audete

207.451.8148

L

2

Proposed Addition to
ine PalOs Residence

3 Old Cutts Road, Kittery, ME

e E— &

Proposed Addition to

ne Palos Residence

3 Old Cutts Road, Kittery, ME

Title Sheet

Scale: not to scale

Date: 11.18.2019




8FTIe IST L0Z ajepny |NDd Uspling JW ‘Adaiy ‘pooy sHND PIO € »0-,02=,T B|P25| 6T028TTT Bj0Q Lo 1

$ZHFT'LO9'C00 IDIDISA SUYD UDWISHDIP mocmb_mmw_ WO_Oﬂ_ QY

2886'G0T'E09  SOIDd ODISSS[ USUMO O} UolIpPY Pasodoid

uoid ayis| © mw




o aj_%-
——6-3&——1
1
4R@V5
- JT@f0” -
[®m; Eropased \H}
B'xt’ :
oveled e
Stair X
L
Existing
A
iy W EED:T
o — gi
Closet ==
=
Existing
Master Bed Rel l
E—Wood
Open Living
E-Wood
L]
Existing
Bath
E—Wood - .
Bean &— 2x4 to 2x6—]
column to transition pt.
iIl align w/
found. wall
below 3
=4
@
T (=%
Existing =
Kitchen El
E-Wood
[@)e]
o0
Existing Proposed
Dining Kitchen/Dining
E—Wood /_ Expansion
E—Wood
¢ ¢ ¢ &,
EQ £Q \
o
i 5680 56:80
] Wall to align
. %) £ with existing
% = Laundry @ | I exterior wall  Closet
w m E-Wood @ | | E—Wood
oy | o 1 2x4 to 2xB
0 ¥ S transition pt.
o
b ——18'-0" EXISTING 12'~0" PROPOSE

Existing
Covered
Porch

Pro Lo
4'x8'
Covered |n
F —
Stair 5
<

[

@ |

0"

-J350d0¥d .0—.+%

ONILSIX3 ,0—.6)

0= LF

12

+2

New Stair
Roof Below

Closet

Existing
Bedroom 1
E-Wood

Existing
Bathroom
E—Wood

Existing
Bedroom 2
E-Wood

Existin|
st
remai

Dn

72x80

Existing
Bedroom 3
E-Wood

Roof Below

/, New Kitchen _/

-ONILSDE ,0—,6F

1350d0¥d .0—,¥Z

603.205.9882
603.667.1424
207.451.8148

draftsman: Chris Velardi

owner: Jessica Palos
builder: Paul Audete

Proposed Addition fo

ne POlOs Residence
3 Old Cutts Road, Kittery, ME

o

|

il

o

~

—

o

O

O

(7]

W

(- o

—

O o

= N
, S L

O i

O i)

et ©
L 0O

2 of 5

AOQ1




8%IB'ISH LOC
FCFT'L99°E09
€886°'G02'€09

a1apNy INbd Ueping
IDIDISA SUYD [UDWISHOIP
SO|IDd DDISSS LUBUMO

W ‘Adsly ‘PrOY SHND PIO €
92UBPISOY SO|Od 3
O} uoyippy pesodold

pajou s P25 6T028TTT Bieg

TO SUOLDAS3

30of5

AQ?2

[

AN

.
N :
| [ ]
9 |
L
, I—
| I—
|
|
_ |
|
" | |

e @




‘ : ‘BT'IT BJ0o
SETETCRIOE  SISPNY D4 49RINg JW ‘AJSHD ‘PPOY SHND PIO € PRjelle oas) BTk e
perT L9909 IPiojeA swud wowspop | @JUBPISD SO|Od °* 20 SUOIOAS[S
7886'S02'€09 SO LDISSSI 1UBUMO 0l UoclIppy peasodold .

—
L

il

¢

o/

[

A03

4 of 5




GPISTCHLOZ  SI9PNY |NDJ J8pINg IW ‘Alopy ‘PROY SHND PIO € BlRs] SINELLR SRl o N
pepT'L99'209 1PIojeA swud uowsyoip | QJUDPISD Y SO0 °H 010U re) -
Z886'G02'€09 SO|0d DDISSS[ IBUMO O] uolIppPY _U®m00_0k_n_ Lo




Th-Y

o

gt

HIHLIT TV SNOILINISIHATY STHLENS ON - ur e hauvion
| SEoHes

Q3TN YO QISSIYNIXT

T rencsoun JNGZ QMYZYH 9007 4
J3LVNOISIQ AT1V439S M 317 Lov SI0a
$300 0O ONITTIIME“ 3} 44 ANV “NOILONYISN
40 3WIL 3HL
LON S/ O $/[X NOLLYDOT ONITIIMA 3IHL LVYHL
AIN3YvddyY 3INON
‘d3LVOIANI SV Ld30X3 SLNIWHOVONONI HO SINIW
-3SV3 LN3YVddV ON 3NV 383IHL IVHL ‘a¥0923y 40

107 NO NMOHS SV ATTVILNVLSENS S| NOILYO01 9NIT
-13MA 3HL LVHL YOMNSNI S1| gNV NOILVHOLHO0I

JOWILYONW LSVYINNVYE 3IHL OL AdIL¥ID AG3IYIH |

¥IHLO [

NOILYANIDO0 INF Vo [ 0330 O
YW xvL O(siigg 59 A)ATAMNS SNONT S <

‘WO¥J 0 3AIY3A NOILYN¥N9IINOD 107
AJAYNS AMVANNOS v Q3W33Q 39 OL L1ON
AINO S3S0d¥Nd ONIANIT 39VO1HOW 404

H'N ‘NOOMEVIS © &3F17x3T
INI D0SSY AFNYNS &MV

S86 1 Y3aw3734:3 1va 02+, :37v9S

W RAILLIN
ayoy Grinp ‘SNI0T

NO/LVYOd409
FOVILYOW LSVINNVEG

404
( NVId 107d Q7411839 )

101d NOILO3dSNI 3I9OVOLYOW

‘SLNIWWO O




PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

BOA Meeting Date: December 10, 2019

Item #: MVR2019-11

STAFF REPORT -3 OLD CUTTS ROAD — MISCELLANEOUS VARIATION REQUEST
m

Project Name: 3 Old Cutts Road

Applicant: Chris Velardi

Owner: Josephine Robbins

Proposed Development: Addition to a non-conforming structure

Requests: Miscellaneous Variation Request to expand a non-conforming
structure in the Residential — Rural (R-RL) zone per Section
16.6.4.C(1).

Site Addresses: 3 Old Cutts Road

Map & Lot Numbers: M60L 17

O Cutts Rd

Current Zoning:
Residential — Rural (R-RL) - This zoning district is intended to protect the prevailing rural character

of the Town and its natural rural quality from development sprawl by prescribing the most
appropriate uses and standards.



The following uses are permitted in the Residential — Rural (R-RL) Zone: (1) Dwellings or modular
homes, exclusive of mobile homes. The proposed use is permitted by right.

Staff Recommendation: APPROVAL of miscellaneous variation request.

District Standards:
Residential — Rural Zoning District Standards
Land Area per Dwelling (min.) 40,000  |Front Yard Setback (min.) 40 feet
Maximum Building Coverage 25% Rear Yard Setback (min.) 20 feet
Lot Size (min.) 40,000 sf |Side Yard Setback (min.) 20 feet

Current Use: Dwelling unit, occupied house

Surrounding Land Uses:

West: Residential — Residential Rural (R-RL). dwelling unit
East: Residential — Residential Rural (R-RL). dwelling unit
North: Residential — Residential Rural (R-RL). dwelling unit
South: Residential — Residential Rural (R-RL). dwelling unit

Future Land Use:

The subject property is located within the “Limited Growth™ area on the future land use map which
is defined as land where the town would like to discourage growth and development in order to
protect natural resources and limit the expansion of public utilities, services, and infrastructure.

Site Description:

The subject property consists of an 8,712 square foot lot (.2 acres), located along the eastern right-
of-way of Old Cutts Road, off of Cutts road. The property is a non-conforming lot of record as it
does not meet the minimum land area or the street frontage. The property is a corner lot and thus a
40-foot front setback is measured from both sections of Old Cutts Road.

History of the Property:

The property contains one dwelling built in approximately 1900. The existing building violates one
of the front setbacks as it is located 13 feet from the property line, where 40 feet is required. The
rest of the property conforms to the zoning setbacks.

Description of the Issue:

The applicant proposes to remove and existing exterior deck and build in its place a one-story
kitchen addition. The addition will remain conforming to the front setback. Additionally, a stair
set 1s proposed to be added to the eastern side of the building. Both additions will be constructed
within the building envelope of the property and will not make the structure more non-conforming.

Applicant’s Miscellaneous Variation Request:
Section 16.6.6 requires the Board of Appeals to use the following process when hearing requests:

$ 16.6.6 Basis for decision.



A. Conditions.
(1) In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must first
establish that it has a basis in law to conduct the hearing and decide the question.

LUDC Section 16.6.4.C.(1) allows the Board of Appeals to decide variations for
nonconformities covered in Section 16.7.3. Further, Section 16.7.3.5.A.(1) states,
“Nonconforming lots. In any district, notwithstanding limitations imposed by other
sections of this title, single noncontiguous lots legally created when recorded may be
built upon consistent with the uses in the particular zone. These provisions apply even
though such lots fail to meet the minimum requirements for area or width, or both,
which are applicable in the zone, provided that yard dimensions and other
requirements, not involving area or width, or both, of the lot conform to the
regulation for the zone in which such lot is located. Relaxation of yard and other
requirements not involving area or width may be obtained only through
miscellaneous variation request to the Board of Appeals.”

(2) In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must use the
Jfollowing criteria as the basis of a decision, that:

(a) The proposed use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of
adjacent properties or of properties in adjacent use zones,

Staff believes the use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of
adjacent properties since adjacent properties are zoned Residential —
Rural and contain the same dwelling use as the subject property.

(b) The use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of permitted or
legally established uses in the zone wherein the proposed use is to be
located or of permitted or legally established uses in adjacent use zones;

Staff believes the use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of
legally established uses in the zone since the use is the same as adjoining
properties and there are no use restrictions among adjacent dwelling
units.

(c) The safety, the health and the welfare of the Town will not be adversely
affected by the proposed use or its location; and

Staff believes the use will not adversely affect the health and welfare of
the Town.

(d) The use will be in harmony with and promote the general purposes and
intent of this title.

Staff believes the use is in harmony with Title 16 and promotes its
general purposes.



Factors for consideration. In making such determination, the Board of Appeals must also give
consideration, among other things, to:

(1)

(2)

)

4)

(3)

(6)

7)

(8)

The character of the existing and probable development of uses in the zone and the
peculiar suitability of such zone for the location of any of such uses;

The proposed use involved is allowed in the zone by right.

The conservation of property values and the encouragement of the most
appropriate uses of land;

The proposed expansion is an appropriate use of the land. The proposed
expansion would not be detrimental to property values.

The effect that the location of the proposed use may have upon the congestion or
undue increase of vehicular traffic congestion on public streets or highways;

There is no proposed increase in density that would result in additional
vehicular traffic.

The availability of adequate and proper public or private facilities for the treatment,
removal or discharge of sewage, refuse or other effluent (whether liquid, solid,

gaseous or otherwise) that may be caused or created by or as a result of the use;

The property contains an adequate septic system. The proposed addition
should not add any additional effluent.

Whether the use, or materials incidental thereto, or produced thereby, may give off
obnoxious gases, odors, smoke or soot;

The proposed use produces no obnoxious gases, odors, smoke or soot.

Whether the use will cause disturbing emission of electrical discharges, dust, light,
vibration or noise;

The proposed use causes no disturbing emission of electrical discharges, dust,
light, vibration or noise.

Whether the operations in pursuance of the use will cause undue interference with
the orderly enjoyment by the public of parking or of recreational Jacilities, if
existing, or if proposed by the Town or by other competent governmental agency;

No undue interference should result from this use.

The necessity for paved off-street parking;



9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

The project proposes to construct adequate space for off-street parking.
Whether a hazard to life, limb or property because of fire, flood, erosion or panic
may be created by reason or as a result of the use, or by the structures to be used,
or by the inaccessibility of the property or structures thereon for the convenient
entry and operation of fire and other emergency apparatus, or by the undue
concentration or assemblage of persons upon such plot;

No hazards should result from this use.

Whether the use, or the structures to be used, will cause an overcrowding of land or
undue concentration of population or unsightly storage of equipment, vehicles or
other materials;

No overcrowded should result from this use.

Whether the plot area is sufficient, appropriate and adequate for the use and the
reasonably anticipated operation and expansion thereof;

The existing lot is a legal, non-conforming lot of record.

Whether the proposed use will be adequately screened and buffered from contiguous
properties;

The project will not change the existing landscaping, which does provide for
some buffering from neighboring lots.

The assurance of adequate landscaping, grading and provision for natural
drainage;

The project does not propose any grading changes.
Whether the proposed use will provide for adequate pedestrian circulation,
The proposed project will not change the site plan of the property.

Whether the proposed use anticipates and eliminates potential nuisances created by
its location; and

No new nuisances are expected from the continuation of the dwelling use.

The satisfactory compliance with all applicable performance standard criteria
contained in Chapters 16.8 and 16.9.

Other than the miscellaneous variation request filed here, the proposed use and



site plan appear to conform to Title 16.8 and 16.9, subject to Planning Board
review and approval.

Using the standards and criteria found in 16.6.6 of the LUDC, Staff recommends APPROVAL
of the miscellaneous variation request to reduce the setbacks as proposed.



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS October 22, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

MEETING MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER; INTRODUCTORY; ROLL CALL
Vice Chair Louis Leontakianakos called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. and asked that
the roll be called.

Board Members Present: Vern Gardner, Charles Denault 111, April Timko, Suzanne
Dwyer-Jones, Louis Leontakianakos

Board Members Absent: Jetf Brake, Barry Fitzpatrick

Staff Present: Craig Alfis, Code Enforcement Officer
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. AGENDA AMENDMENT AND ADOPTION
e Motion by Mrs. Timko to amend the agenda to remove ACCEPTANCE OF PREVIOUS
MINUTES as the previous meeting minutes have not been provided. Seconded by Ms.

Dwyer-Jones. Motion passed 5-0-0 by roll call vote [Avye: Gardner, Denault, Timko,
Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos: Nay: --; Abstain; --:]

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION
S. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Darlene Hudson Owner, 17 Picott Road, requesting a Special Exception Use for a
Major Home Occupation to operate a wood cutting business in the Residential —
Rural (R-RL) zone, per Section 16.3.2.1C and Section 16.8.22.3 of the Town Code.

e The applicant was invited to the podium and it was explained that the Board did not have
all members present and that they would have the option to have their request continued to
the next meeting should they choose. The applicant declined. Mr. Alfis presented the staff
report. The applicant was given the opportunity to state the details of their request. The
Board had several questions for the applicant. The public were invited to comment. One
abutter and one resident spoke out against the proposed Major Home Occupation. The
applicant was invited back to the podium for rebuttal. The Board entered into discussion.

l1|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS October 22, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

Motion by Mrs. Timko to deny the Special Exception Use request for a Major Home

Occupation to operate a wood cutting business in the Residential - Rural zone for failure to

meet the requirements of a Major Home Occupation and the standards of review. Seconded

by Ms. Dwyer-Jones. Discussion ensued. Motion passed 4-0-1 by roll call vote [Ave:

Denault, Timko, Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos; Nay: : Abstain: Gardner]

The applicant was notified of their legal standing to appeal.

Mrs. Timko read the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law into the
record:

Findings of Fact: (1) Darlene Hudson, owner of 17 Picott Road, requested a Special
Exception Use per code section 16.3.2.1.C.(7) seeking approval for a Major Home
Occupation to operate a wood cutting business. (2) The property is at Map 46 Lot 01 in
the Residential Rural zone. (3) The property consists of .69 acres. (4) The
owner/applicant proposed to operate a wood cutting business Monday through Sunday,
8 am to 3 pm. (5) The applicant provided no information about the potential for odors,
noise emissions or any plans to reduce or screen for the noise emissions. (6) The
applicant did not provide any information about space for off street parking or traffic
and parking overflows. (7) The applicant did provide any information about vegetation
for the purpose of screening. (8) Two members of the public testified against the
proposed use.

Conclusions of Law: (1) Section 16.6.4.D.1 allows the Board of Appeals to hear, decide
and may grant applicant’s special exception use request where authorized for any
application excluded from Planning Board review as stated in §16.10.3.2, if the
proposed use meets the criteria set forth in §16.6.6, Basis for Decision. (2) Since the
property was not in the Shoreland Overlay or Resource Protection Overlay zones this
Special Exception Use request was considered by the Board of Appeals. (3) The Board
considered the factors set forth in 16.6.6, Basis for Decision. (4) In addition, the Board
considered the standards set forth in 16.8.22.3, Major Home Occupation Standards. In
particular, the Board considered the standards related to Subsection D: Business Hours,
Subsection E: Nuisances, Subsection F: Parking, and Subsection J: Traffic. (5) The
Board found that the proposed use did not meet the criteria for approval and the Special
Exception Use request was denied.

Motion to accept the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made by Mr. Gardner.
Seconded by Mr. Denault. Motion passed 5-0-0 by roll call vote [Yes: Denault,
Gardner, Timko, Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos; Nay: --: Abstain:--]

b. David and Cheri Richard, Owners, 3 Cranberry Lane, requesting a
Miscellaneous Variation Request for the expansion of a nonconforming

2|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS October 22, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

structure to add a Temporary, Intra-Family Dwelling Unit in the Residential —
Rural (R-RL) zone, per Section 16.3.2.1C, Section 16.7.3.3B and Section
16.8.21.1 of the Town Code

o Mr. Alfis presented the staff report. The applicant was given the opportunity to state
the details of their request. The Board had several questions for the applicant. It was
determined that an internal connection between the two dwelling units was not
practicable.

Motion by Mr. Gardner to approve the applicants Miscellaneous Variation Request per
Code Section 16.7.3 for the expansion of a nonconforming structure to add a Temporary,

Intra-Family Dwelling Unit with the following conditions:

1. The applicant must annually submit a signed and dated certification by January 15 of
each year to both the Code Enforcement Officer and the Board of Appeals that the
temporary intrafamily dwelling unit is occupied by either a:

a. Person(s) related by blood or marriage within the sixth degree to an occupant
of the property:

b. Personal care provider(s) to an occupant on the property:

c. Personal care receiver(s) from an occupant of the property; or

d. Person(s) with a demonstrably familial type relationship to an occupant of the

property.

2. Upon a permanent vacancy of the temporary intrafamily dwelling unit or the
applicant no longer residing on the premises, the use of the property must be
converted to its original dwelling status or another conforming permanent use.

3. Reapplication to the BOA upon a change in ownership or the property.

4. Joint signature of submitted floor plans by the applicant and a representative of the
BOA signifying the approved design of the temporary intrafamily dwelling unit, and
the manner to convert the use of the property to its original dwelling status or another

conforming permanent use.

Motion was seconded by Mr. Denault. Motion passed 5-0-0 [Yes: Gardner, Denault,
Timko, Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos; No: -- : Abstain: -- ]

Mrs. Timko read the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law into the
record:

3|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS October 22, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

Findings of Fact: (1) The applicant David & Cheri Richard requested a Miscellaneous
Variation Request per code section 16.7.3 for the expansion of a nonconforming
structure to add a Temporary, Intra-Family Dwelling Unit at Map 68 Lot 10-D in the
Residential — Rural zone. (2) The property is located in the Shoreland Overlay zone. (3)
The applicant proposes to construct a 576 square foot single story addition connected to
the existing garage. (4) The proposed structure will be nonconforming to the wetland
setbacks but no more nonconforming than the existing structure. (5) A letter from
Michael Cuomo, soil scientist, was submitted. (6) The Board found that the internal
connection between the two dwelling units was not practicable. (7) There would be no
separate utility metering. (8) The Board considered the standards for Temporary, Intra-
family Dwelling Units set forth in 16.8.21.2. (9) The Board approved the Miscellaneous
Variation Request with the conditions set out in Code Section 16.8.21.3.

Conclusions of Law: (1) The Board considered the factors set forth in 16.6.6, Basis for

Decision and the factors set forth in 16.8.21.3, Temporary, Intra-Family Dwelling
Units and (2) the Board determined that the applicant met the requirements and the
request was approved.

Motion to accept the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made by Mr. Denault.
Seconded by Mr. Gardner. Motion passed 5-0-0 by roll call vote [Yes: Denault,
Gardner, Timko, Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos; Nay: --: Abstain:--]

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

7. NEW BUSINESS

8. ACCEPTANCE OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

9. BOARD MEMBER OR CEO ISSUES OR COMMENT
e Mr. Gardner noted that workshops are required to be noticed.
10. ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Mrs. Timko to adjourn. Second by Ms. Dwyer-Jones. Motion passed 5-0-0 by voice
vote [Aye: Denault, Gardner, Timko, Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos, Brake; Nay: --: Abstain: --]

The Kittery Board of Appeals meeting of October 22, 2019 adjourned at 7:39 p.m.

4|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS October 22, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

Submitted by Craig Alfis, Code Enforcement Officer

Disclaimer: The preceding minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting.
While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the minutes
are not intended to be a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting but only a summary
of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please refer to the video
of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website at
http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/kittery-maine.

5|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS November 26, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

MEETING MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER; INTRODUCTORY; ROLL CALL
Chair Jeff Brake called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and asked that the roll be called.

Board Members Present: Vern Gardner, Charles Denault 111, April Timko, Barry
Fitzpatrick, Louis Leontakianakos, Jeff Brake

Board Members Absent: Suzanne Dwyer-Jones

Staff Present: Craig Alfis, Code Enforcement Officer
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. AGENDA AMENDMENT AND ADOPTION
4. EXECUTIVE SESSION
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Wade Blake, on behalf of owner James Powers, 5 Hutchins Cove Drive, requesting a
Variance build an addition within the rear setback to an existing structure in the
Residential — Rural (R-RL) zone, per Section 16.6.4.B of the Town Code

e Mr. Gardner disclosed that he had previously worked with Mr. Pelech, representative for
Mr. Powers and requested to recuse himself. Mr. Alfis presented the staff report. The
Board had several questions for Mr. Alfis. Mr. Alfis also relayed correspondence from an
abutter, Mr. Cititarese, who spoke in favor of the applicant’s request. The applicant’s
representative was given the opportunity to state the details of their request. The Board had
several questions for Mr. Pelech. The owner, Mr. Powers and the applicant, Mr. Blake
spoke on behalf of the request. The public were invited to comment. One abutter spoke in
favor of the variance request. The Board entered into discussion.

Motion by Mrs. Timko to grant the variance request to build an addition in the rear setback
to an existing structure in the Residential - Rural zone, as presented to the Board. Seconded
bv Mr. Denault. Discussion ensued. Motion failed 0-5-0 by roll call vote [Yes: --: No:

Denault, Timko, Fitzpatrick, L eontakianakos; Brake: Abstain: --]

Mrs. Timko read the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law into the record:

1|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS November 26, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

Findings of Fact: (1) Wade Blake, on behalf of owner James Powers, 5 Hutchins Cove
Drive, requesting a Variance build an addition within the rear setback to an existing
structure in the Residential — Rural (R-RL) zone. (2) An attorney presented the case for
the applicant. (3) The applicant proposed to construct an 18x22 addition to the rear of
the existing structure. (4) The new addition would encroach 7 feet into the rear setback
of the property. (5) The rear setback would be reduced from 20 feet down to 13 feet. (6)
The presentation included information about the proposed use of the addition, the lot
size and configuration. (7) One abutter spoke in favor of the proposal.

Conclusions of Law: (1) The Board considered the requirements set out in Section
16.6.4.B(c). (2) The Board found that the request did not meet the requirement of an
undue hardship, specifically that the land in question could not yield a reasonable return
unless a variance is granted and that the hardship was not the result of action taken by
the applicant or prior owner. (3) The request for a variance was denied by a vote of zero
in the affirmative to five in the negative.

Motion to accept the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made by Mr.
Leontakianakos. Seconded by Mr. Denault. Motion passed 5-0-0 by roll call vote [Yes:

Denault, Timko, Fitzpatrick, Leontakianakos, Brake: Nay: --: Abstain:--]

The applicant was notified of their legal standing to appeal.

b. Erin Sherman, on behalf of tenant Mitchell Delaney, 120 State Road, requesting
a Special Exception use for a Major Home Occupation to operate as a medical
marijuana primary caregiver in the Business — Local (B-L) zone, per Section
16.3.2.8 and Section 16.8.22.3 of the Town Code.

Mr. Gardner rejoined the meeting at 7:02.

e There was much discussion from the Board on who presents their information first:
the applicant or the CEO. Mr. Gardner contended that the applicant goes first. The
Chair and majority of the Board contended that the CEO present the staff report first.
Mr. Alfis presented the staff report. The applicant’s representation, Ms. Sherman
presented the details of the request. The Board had several questions for the
applicant and tenant. Mr. Delaney was invited to answer the Boards questions.
There was much discussion about potential parking issues.

Motion by Mrs. Timko to approve the applicants Special Exception Use Request per

Code Section 16.8.22.3 for a Major Home Occupation as a marijuana primary caregiver

with the following conditions:

2|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS November 26, 2019
Council Chambers - 6:30PM

10.

The owner must abide by all provisions of Maine State Law on medical marijuana
licensed caregivers, 22 M.R.S. § 2425,

The applicant must be a resident of the dwelling on the premises where the home
occupation will occur. An applicant who is not the owner of the property. but is residing
on the premises, must submit written permission of the property owner for the proposed
home occupation.

The maximum total amount of square footage attributed to the home occupation use must
not exceed 1,257 square feet.

There must be no more than five adults, inclusive of residents of the premises, working in
the home occupation at the site at any one time.

No other major home occupations may be conducted on the premises while operating as a

licensed medical marijuana caregiver.

Business activities involving clients or customers on the premises or vehicular traffic to
and from the premises must not be conducted between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00
a.m. The applicant must submit a plan that provides safe and sufficient off-street parking
to meet the needs of the business and prevent parking from overflowing off the site.

If there is any outdoor storage of equipment, vehicles or items associated with the home
occupation must be screened from view of abutting properties and from all streets except
for one (1) vehicle used in conjunction with the home occupation and vehicles owned by

residents of the premises with valid license plates.

All business activities on the site must take place within an enclosed building.

All refuse and recyclables must be stored in containers that are screened from view of
abutting properties and from streets.

Upon approval of a major home occupation by the Board of Appeals and compliance
with the above conditions, the Code Enforcement Officer is authorized to issue a
certificate of occupancy permit for not more than a one-vear time period. Such permit
may be renewed annually upon application to the Code Enforcement Officer. The annual
permit may be renewed only if the Code Enforcement Officer finds the major home
occupation complies with all applicable standards of this Code and any conditions
required by the Board of Appeals in the original approval.

3|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS November 26, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

Motion was seconded by Mr. Fitzpatrick. Motion passed 6-0-0 [Yes: Gardner,
Denault, Timko, Fitzpatrick, Leontakianakos Brake:; No: -- : Abstain: -- |

Mrs. Timko read the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law into the
record:

Findings of Fact: (1) Attorney Erin Sherman submitted an application on behalf of
Mitchell Delaney for a Special Exception Use per Code Section 16.8.22.3 seeking
approval for a Major Home Occupation as a medical marijuana primary caregiver to be
located at 120 State Road. (2) The Board found they had authority to hear the Special
Exception Use pursuant to Code 16.1.5.B.6(e). (3) The premise is located in the
Business Local zone. (4) The property is a legal conforming lot containing one single
family dwelling with attached garage with approximately 2,517 total square feet. The
residential living space on the first floor consists of three bedrooms of 1,477 square feet.
(5) Mr. Delaney will reside there full time. (6) The Major Home Occupation would be
in the basement which consists of the garage and a small room and at 858 square feet
would be approximately 1/3 of the total square footage. (7) Mr. Delaney is the sole
employee but may employ others in the future. (8) Mr. Delaney is a registered primary
caregiver in the State of Maine. (9) Business activities would be conducted indoors. (10)
Marijuana would not be grown at this location. (11) A parking plan has been submitted.
(12) The Board considered the standards for a Major Home Occupation set forth in
16.8.22.3, and (13) the general requirements for the Basis of Decision set forth in Code
16.6.6. (14) The Board found that the proposed use meets the requirements set out for a
Major Home Occupation and approved the request (15) This request was noticed in the
Portsmouth Herald on November 19, 2019.

Conclusions of Law: (1) The Board had authority to hear the request under Section

16.1.5.B.6(e) and 16.8.22.3. (2) The Board found that the applicant met the
requirements and standards and (3) approved the request by a vote of six in the
affirmative with one member absent.

Motion to accept the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made by Mr.
Leontakianakos. Seconded by Mr. Denault. Motion passed 6-0-0 by roll call vote [Yes:
Denault, Gardner, Timko, Fitzpatrick, Leontakianakos, Brake: Nay: --: Abstain:--]

The Board was notified of their right to reconsider and the public was notified of their
right to appeal.

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

4|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS November 26, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

7. NEW BUSINESS

° Mr. Leontakianakos noted that elections for Board officers were coming up. Chair Brake
announced they would be held on the meeting of December 10, 2019.

8. ACCEPTANCE OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

e October 8, 2019
Motion made by Mr. Denault to accept the minutes of October 8, 2019 as submitted.
Seconded by Mr. Fitzpatrick. Motion passed 6-0-0 by roll call vote [Yes: Denault,
Gardner, Timko, Fitzpatrick, Leontakianakos, Brake: Nay: --: Abstain:--]

e October 22, 2019
Motion made by Mr. Leontakianakos to accept the minutes of October 22. 2019 as
submitted. Seconded by Mr. Denault. Discussion ensued. Mrs. Timko pointed out that
the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were missing from the minutes for
Agenda Item 1. Mrs. Timko proposed to amend the motion to postpone the acceptance
until the minutes could be corrected. Amendment seconded by Mr. Denault. Motion
failed 3-0-3 by roll call vote [Yes: Denault, Timko, Leontakianakos: Nay: --; Abstain:
Gardner, Fitzpatrick, Brake]

9. BOARD MEMBER OR CEQ ISSUES OR COMMENT

¢ Mr. Denault stated that Mr. Gardner’s behavior is absolutely unbecoming and
inappropriate for this Board and will be making a recommendation to the Town Council
as well as the Town Manager for his removal.

e Mr. Alfis informed the Board that the 2020 meeting calendar would be submitted for
review at the next meeting.

o It was also noted that the only meeting in December is on the 10,

e M. Fitzpatrick voiced his agreement with Mr. Denault’s statement about Mr. Gardner.

e  Chair Brake stated that he will be speaking with both the Town Manager and Chair
Spiller tomorrow concerning the issues at the meeting.

10. ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Mr. Fitzpatrick to adjourn. Second by Mr. Gardner. Motion passed 6-0-0 by voice
vote [Aye: Denault, Gardner. Timko, Dwyer-Jones, Leontakianakos, Brake: Nay: --; Abstain: --]

The Kittery Board of Appeals meeting of November 26, 2019 adjourned at 7:59 p.m.

5|Page



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE UNAPPROVED
BOARD OF APPEALS November 26, 2019
Council Chambers — 6:30PM

Submitted by Craig Alfis, Code Enforcement Officer

Disclaimer: The preceding minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting.
While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the minutes
are not intended to be a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting but only a summary
of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please refer to the video
of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website at
http.://mwww. townhallstreams.com/locations/kitterv-maine.

6|Page



